
` 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A WORKSHOP AND REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

DATE:    TUESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2015 

TIME:    5:30 PM 

PLACE:    PHARR CITY HALL 

    3rd FLOOR FIRE DEPARTMENT TRAINING ROOM  

    118 SOUTH CAGE BOULEVARD 

    PHARR, TEXAS 78577 

 

PRESIDING: RANCE G. SWEETEN, CHAIRMAN 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
INVOCATION 
 
PROCLAMATION – Norma Garza, PE ‐ Recipient of 2015 Deberry Award 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR WORKSHOP 
 

1. Discussion regarding the proposed Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Fiscal Year 2016 Operating & Capital Budget. 
2. Discussion regarding bid alternates for the State Highway 365 Segments 1 & 2 Project. 
3. Discussion regarding Audit of DBE requirement for Engineering and Surveying Consultants working on the State Highway 

365 Segment 1, 2 & 3 Project. 
4. Discussion regarding proposed Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 9 to the Professional Service 

Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to provide Program Management and Construction Management & Inspection 
for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects. 

 
ADJOURMENT OF WORKSHOP 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR REGULAR MEETING 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Manager Activity for SH 365 and IBTC – Louis Jones, Dannenbaum Engineering 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing Body and will be 

enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if discussion is desired, that item(s) will 
be  removed  from  the  Consent Agenda  and  will  be  considered  separately.  The  Governing Body may  also elect  to  go  into 
Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not such item(s) are posted as an Executive Session Item, at any 
time during the meeting when authorized by provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.) 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting held November 20, 2015. 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from November 7, 2015 to December 4, 2015. 

C. Approval of Financial Report for November 2015. 

D. Resolution 2015‐81 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 2 to the Professional Service 

Agreement with L&G Engineering for a no‐cost time extension for the State Highway 365 Project IBWC Bridge Layouts. 



` 

E. Resolution 2015‐82 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 3 to the Professional Service 

Agreement with L&G Engineering for a no‐cost time extension to prepare final Plans, Specifications and Estimates for the 

State Highway 365 Segment 2 (McColl Road to Anzalduas Highway) Project. 

F. Resolution 2015‐83 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service 

Agreement  with  S&B  Infrastructure  for  a  no‐cost  time  extension  to  perform  State  Highway  365  Segment  1  (US 

281/Military Highway to McColl Road) Project  Schematic Alignment. 

G. Resolution 2015‐84 – Approval of Supplemental Number 3 to Work Authorization Number 2 to the Professional Service 

Agreement with S&B Infrastructure for a no‐cost time extension to prepare Irrigation Details and “I” Road Steel Bridge 

Design for State Highway 365 Segment 1 (US 281/Military Highway to McColl Road) Project. 

H. Resolution 2015‐85 – Approval of Supplemental Number 5 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service 

Agreement with Raba Kistner for a no‐cost time extension to provide pavement design for the US 281/Military Highway 

Overpass/BSIF Connector Project. 

I. Resolution 2015‐86 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 3 to the Professional Service 

Agreement with R. Gutierrez Engineering for a no‐cost time extension for ETT Parcels as part of the International Bridge 

Trade Corridor Project. 

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA  
 
A. Resolution 2015‐87 – Adoption of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Fiscal Year 2016 Operating & Capital 

Budget.  
B. Resolution 2015‐88 – Approval of bid alternates for the State Highway 365 Segment 1 & 2 Project. 
C. Resolution 2015‐89 – Approval of Award of Contract to Foremost Paving for construction of the US 281/Military 

Highway Overpass/BSIF Connector Project . 
D. Resolution 2015 – 90 – Approval of Professional Service Agreements with Raba Kistner, L&G Laboratory and Terra Con 

to provide Construction Material Testing Services for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor 
Projects. 

E. Resolution 2015‐91 – Approval of Work Authorization Number 20 to the Professional Service Agreement with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to provide an update to the Investment Grade Traffic and Revenue Study for the proposed 
State Highway 365 Toll Revenue Bond Series 2016 issuance. 

F. Resolution 2015‐92 – Approval of Texas Department of Transportation State Infrastructure Bank Loan in the amount of 
$42 Million for the State Highway 365 Project. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 

A. Report on State Infrastructure Bank Loan with the Texas Department of Transportation for the State Highway 365 

Project. 

B. Report on upcoming 10th Annual Texas Transportation Forum to be held in January 14‐16, 2016, in Austin. 

 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY), 

SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL MATTERS)  
 

A. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Project Development, Operation & Maintenance 
Agreement for State Highway 365 and Advance Funding Agreement for US 281/Military Highway Overpass Projects 
(Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

B. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the State Infrastructure Bank Loan for the State Highway 
365 Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.)  

C. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the deliberation of real property for the State Highway 
365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 



` 

D. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Early Right of Way Acquisition and environmental 
clearance process for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects (Section 551.071 T.G.C).  

E. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the use of Eminent Domain to acquire property required 
to complete the project alignments of the State Highway 365 and the International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects 
(Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

F. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the proposed South Texas Class I Rail Project (Section 
551.071 T.G.C.). 
 

ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

I,  the  Undersigned  Authority,  do  hereby  certify  that  the  attached  agenda  of  the  Hidalgo  County  Regional  Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board  in the Hidalgo County 
Court House (100 North Closner, Edinburg, Texas 78539), a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public 
at  all  times,  and  said  Notice  was  posted  on  the  9th  day  of  December  2015  at  12:00  pm  and  will  remain  so  posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance with Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 

 

                                         Flor E. Koll 

                  Executive Assistant 
 
Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Flor E. Koll at 
956‐402‐4762 at least 24 hours before the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 

 

Public Comment Policy: “At the beginning of each HCRMA meeting, the HCRMA will allow for an open public 

forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one‐half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 

allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak. All individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to 

do so, prior to the open comment period. The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to 

address issues or topics that are under the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part 

of the posted agenda for the meeting, HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No 

action or discussion shall be taken on issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. 

Members of the public may be recognized on posted agenda items deemed appropriate by the Chairman as these items 

are considered, and the same time limitations (3 minutes) applies.” 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 1 





































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 2 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 3 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 4 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1A 













































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2A                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           12/02/15                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        12/15/15  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 20, 

2015.              
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board 

of Directors Regular Meeting held November 20, 2015.       
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular  

Meeting held November 20, 2015 as presented.        
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2015  1   

 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HIDALGO 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened for a Regular Meeting on Friday, November 

20, 2015, at 4:00 pm at the Pharr City Hall, Council Chambers, 2nd Floor, 118 South Cage Boulevard, Pharr, Texas, with the 

following present: 
 

 
Board Members:    Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman                   HCRMA 
        Josue Reyes, Vice‐Chairman                HCRMA 

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer (Teleconference)   HCRMA 
        Forrest Runnels, Director (Teleconference)              HCRMA 
        David Guerra, Director                  HCRMA 

Alonzo Cantu, Director  (Teleconference)              HCRMA 
 

Absent:      Julian Ybarra, Director                  HCRMA 
 

     
Staff:      Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director              HCRMA 
        Ramon Navarro, Construction Engineer                           HCRMA 
        Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer            HCRMA 
        Jose Castillo, Chief Finance Officer              HCRMA 

Carlos Moreno, Acquisition Coordinator                HCRMA 
Flor Koll, Program Administrator              HCRMA 
Blakely Fernandez, Legal Counsel (Teleconference)      HCRMA 

        Louis Jones, Program Manager                HCRMA 
                 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Chairman Sweeten led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Mr. Ramon Navarro led the Invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING AND ESTABLISH A QUORUM FOR REGULAR MEETING 
 
Chairman Sweeten called the regular meeting to order at 4:03 pm.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

None. 
 
1. REPORTS 

 

A. Report on Program Manager Activity for SH 365 and IBTC – Louis Jones, Dannenbaum Engineering. 
Louis Jones and Eric Davila, Dannenbaum Engineering, reported on the progress to date for the SH 365 and 

IBTC Projects. No action taken. 

 



 

HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2015  2   

2. CONSENT AGENDA.  
 
Motion by David Guerra, with a second by Alonzo Cantu, to approve the Consent Agenda with revisions to Item 
2E to  include Work Authorizations 3 and 4 and  Item 2G to correct Work Authorization Number  from 5 to 4. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting held October 27, 2015. 

Approved the Minutes for Regular Meeting held October 27, 2015 as presented. 
 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from October 9, 2015 to November 6, 2015. 
Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period from October 9, 2015 to November 6, 2015 as 
presented. 

 
C. Approval of Financial Report for October 2015. 

Approved the Financial Report for October 2015 as presented. 
 

D. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending September 30, 2015.  
Approved the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending September 30, 2015.  

 
E. Resolution 2015‐77 – Approval of Supplemental Number 3 to the Professional Service Agreement with DOS 

Land Surveying to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 3 & 4.   
Approved Resolution 2015‐77 – Approval of Supplemental Number 3 to the Professional Service Agreement 

with DOS Land Surveying to increase the maximum payable amount by $26,658.60 for Work Authorizations 

Number 3 and 4 for a revised maximum payable amount of $814,202.89. 

F. Resolution  2015‐78  –  Approval  of  Supplemental  Number  5  the  Professional  Service  Agreement  with  R. 
Gutierrez  Engineering  to  increase  the  maximum  payable  amount  for  Supplemental  Number  1  to  Work 
Authorization Number 4.  
Approved Resolution 2015‐78 – Approval of Supplemental Number 5 the Professional Service Agreement with 

R. Gutierrez Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount by $1,282.08 for Supplemental Number 1 

to Work Authorization Number 4 for a revised maximum payable amount of $151,564.21. 

G. Resolution 2015‐79 – Approval of Work Authorization Number 5 to the Professional Service Agreement with 
DOS Land Surveying to provide International Boundary Water Commission levee parcels as part of the State 
Highway 365 Project.   
Approved  Resolution  2015‐79  –  Approval  of  Work  Authorization  Number  4  to  the  Professional  Service 

Agreement with DOS Land Surveying to provide International Boundary Water Commission  levee parcels as 

part of the State Highway 365 Project in the amount of $23,570.70. 

3. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

A. Resolution 2015‐75 – Authorizing the removal of Celia Gaona as signatory and the addition of Jose Castillo and 
Julian Ybarra Jr. as an authorized signatory and grant inquiry access only to Karla Moya, Carlos Montemayor 
and Nydia Rodriguez, City of Pharr Finance, on PlainsCapital Bank, TexSTAR and Wilmington Trust Accounts. 
Motion by David Guerra, with a second by Josue Reyes, to approve Resolution 2015‐75 – Authorizing the 
removal of Celia Gaona as signatory and the addition of Jose Castillo and Julian Ybarra Jr. as an authorized 
signatory and grant  inquiry access only to Karla Moya, Carlos Montemayor and Nydia Rodriguez, City of 
Pharr  Finance,  on  PlainsCapital  Bank,  TexSTAR  and  Wilmington  Trust  Accounts.    Motion  carried 
unanimously. 
 

B. Resolution 2015‐76 – Approval of the designation of Jose Castillo and Pilar Rodriguez as an Investment Officer 
for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 



 

HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2015  3   

Motion by David Guerra, with a second by Josue Reyes, to approve Resolution 2015‐76 – Designating Jose 
Castillo and Pilar Rodriguez as an Investment Officer for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
C. Resolution 2015‐80 – Approval of Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with Hidalgo County for Right of Way 

Acquisition Services. 
Motion by Forrest Runnels, with a second by Alonzo Cantu, to approve Resolution 2015‐80 – Approval of 
Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with Hidalgo County for Right of Way Acquisition Services for the State 
Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 

A. Report on State Infrastructure Bank Loan with the Texas Department of Transportation for the State Highway 

365 Project. 

Chairman Sweeten reported on State Infrastructure Bank Loan with the Texas Department of Transportation 

for the State Highway 365 Project. 

 

5.  TABLED ITEMS 

 

A. None 
 

6. EXECUTIVE  SESSION,  CHAPTER  551,  TEXAS  GOVERNMENT  CODE,  SECTION  551.071  (CONSULTATION  WITH 
ATTORNEY),  SECTION  551.072  (DELIBERATION  OF  REAL  PROPERTY)  AND  SECTION  551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  

 
  The Board of Directors did not enter in to Executive Session on any of these items. 
 

A. Consultation  with  Board  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  the  Project  Development,  Operation  & 

Maintenance Agreement for State Highway 365 and Advance Funding Agreement for US 281/Military Highway 

Overpass Projects (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

No action taken. 

 

B. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the deliberation of real property for the State 

Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

No action taken.  
 

C. Consultation  with  Board  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  Early  Right  of  Way  Acquisition  and 
environmental clearance process for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects 
(Section 551.071 T.G.C). 
No action taken.  

 

D. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the use of Eminent Domain to acquire property 

required to complete the project alignments of the State Highway 365 and the  International Bridge Trade 

Corridor Projects (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

No action taken. 

 

E. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the proposed South Texas Class I Rail Project 

(Section 551.071 T.G.C.).                                                                                                                           

No action taken. 



 

HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2015  4   

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, the meeting was adjourned at 4:18 pm.  
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
   
__________________________________________ 
Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2B 





































































































































































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2C 





































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2D 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2E 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2F 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2G 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2H 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2I 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3A 





































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3B 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3C 

















































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3D 

























































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3E 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS X AGENDA ITEM        3E
PLANNING COMMITTEE    DATE SUBMITTED      12/01/15                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE 12/15/15  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2015-91 – APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 
20 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING TO 
PROVIDE AND UPDATE TO THE INVESTMENT GRADE TRAFFIC AND REVENUE STUDY
FOR THE PROPOSED STATE HIGHWAY 365 TOLL REVENUE BOND SERIES 2016 
ISSUANCE.             

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments: X Yes     No

Approval of Work Authorization Number 20 to Professional Service Agreement with   
Dannenbaum Engineering to provide an update to the Investment Grade Traffic and Revenue  
Study for the State Highway 365 Project in the amount of $299,649.23.     

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  

4. Budgeted:     X Yes     No     N/A   Funding Source:  VRF Bond

Proposed Work Authorization No. 20: 
Investment Grade T&R Update:   $299,649.23
   

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2015-91 - Approval of Work   
Authorization Number 20 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum  
Engineering to provide an update to the Investment Grade Traffic and Revenue Study for  
the proposed State Highway 365 Toll Revenue Bond Series 2016 issuance in the amount  
of $299,649.23.                 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation: X Approved     Disapproved     None

6. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:  Approved     Disapproved       X None

7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: Approved     Disapproved     X None

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation: Approved     Disapproved     X None

9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation: X Approved     Disapproved     None

10. Executive Director’s Recommendation: X Approved     Disapproved     None



To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director

Date: December 1, 2015

Re: Approval of Work Authorization Number 20 with Dannenbaum Engineering to 
provide and update to the Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study for SH 365

Background
At the October 27, 2011, regular meeting, the Board of Directors awarded a professional service agreement for general 
engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum Engineering (DEC) for a maximum payable amount of 
$5,000,000. Subsequently, the Board approved Work Authorizations (WA) Numbers 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, Supplemental 1, 2, 3, 4, 
5 & 6 to WA No. 6, WA 8, Supplemental 1 to WA 8, WA Number 9, WA Number 11, WA Number 12, WA Number 13, WA
Number 14, WA Number 15, WA Number 16, WA Number 17, WA Number 18 and WA Number 19 in the amounts of 
$909,960.63, $57,750.00, $891,814.61, $832,369.93, $689,834.33, $81,309.04, $149,120.30, $346,720.31, 
$1,437,465.41, $117,054.83, $460,000.00, $10,340,781.60, $285,984.85, $49,034.16, $180,053.72, $89,062.56, 
$397,750.88, $80,256.47, $215,571.04, $110,078.54, $355,355.20 and $21,770.44 (Supplemental 6 to WA 6 was for no 
increase) respectively as discussed below.

Work Authorization No. 1 - was to review prior engineering, surveying, environmental and permitting work provided to the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA).
Work Authorization No. 2 - was cancelled by the HCRMA Board. 
Work Authorization No. 3 - was to provide title reports for the State Highway 365 (SH 365) Project.
Work Authorization No. 4 - was to update the new Executive Director, oversee the update of the Traffic & Revenue study, 
oversee environmental clearance/preliminary design of SH 365 and oversee various other tasks related to SH 365 and 
IBTC Projects. 
Work Authorizations No. 5 & 6 - are to continue Program Management for SH 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor 
(IBTC) Projects.
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a sketch level Traffic & Revenue Study for overweight 
trucks at the Pharr International Bridge and SH 365. 
Supplemental No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a Value Engineering Study for the SH 365 Project. 
Supplemental No. 3 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a low level aerial flight and topographic survey for the 
IBTC Project. 
Supplemental No. 4 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to provide updated TRZ parcels, implementation of overweight 
truck corridor, manage Engineers/Surveyors/Geotech for IBTC, local environment clearance of IBTC, negotiate final 
PS&E for SH 365, implement ProjectWise, evaluate Toll Integrator, manage Appraisers/Title Companies/ROW Agents, 
implement GIS for ROW Acquisition and perform value engineering for IBTC.
Supplemental No. 5 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to provide non-destructive vertical utility locations for design of 
final PS&E for the SH 365 Project.
Supplemental No. 6 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to revise the scope of services to include additional environmental
coordination meeting required by TxDOT, as well as, analysis, meetings, exhibits and estimates for intervention in the 
Cross Valley Project.
Work Authorization No. 7 – was cancelled by the City of Pharr.
Work Authorization No. 8 – was to provide continued program management for the SH 365 and Overweight Corridor 
Projects only.
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization No. 8 – revise the scope of work to include the IBTC Project and to deduct balance 
of work and close out the Work Authorization No. 8.



Page 2
Work Authorization No. 20
December 1, 2015

Work Authorization No. 9 – includes program and construction management of SH 365 and IBTC Projects through facility 
opening and operation in 2018.
Work Authorization No. 10 – includes an update the right of way strip map for the IBTC Project due to value engineering 
changes.
Work Authorization No. 11 – provides a low level aerial topographic survey for the IBTC Project due to value engineering 
changes.
Work Authorization No. 12 – updates 2,215 un-coded property parcels in HCRMA Transportation Reinvestment Zone 
Number 2.
Work Authorization No. 13 – provides an Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis required by the Texas 
Department of Transportation.
Work Authorization No. 14 – provides an Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study for SH 365, IBTC and SH 68 
Projects.
Work Authorization No. 15 – provides a TIGER Grant Application for the SH 365 project.
Supplemental No. 7 to Work Authorization No. 6 – is proposed to provide additional non-destructive vertical utility 
locations for the SH 365 project.
Work Authorization No. 16 – provides an H&H Study for the SH 365 and IBTC drainage service areas.
Work Authorization No. 17 – provides traffic signal warrant projected traffic counts for SH 365 and IBTC Projects.
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 10 – provides for a no-cost time extension to update the right of way strip 
map for the IBTC Project.
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 17 – provides for a no-cost time extension to provide traffic signal warrant 
projected traffic counts for SH 365 and IBTC Projects.
Work Authorization No. 18 – provides non-destructive vertical utility locations for the IBTC project.
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 18 – provides a no-cost time extension to the non-destructive vertical utility 
locations for the IBTC project.
Work Authorization No. 19 – provides scenario analysis for the SH 365 Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study for a 
SIB Loan.

Goal
Staff is proposing Work Authorization Number 20 to provide an update to the Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue (IGTR) 
Study for the State Highway 365 Project. The current IGTR was completed in October of 2014 as requested by the Texas 
Department of Transportation and is approximately 14 months old. It is anticipated that the Authority will go to the Bond 
Market in April of 2016 to issue Toll Revenue Bonds for construction of the roadway, at which point the current IGTR 
would be approximately 18 months old. Industry standard calls for IGTR to be no more than 6 months old when taken to 
market.

All field data (traffic counts), socioeconomic data, travel demand model, revenue projection, sensitivity analysis and risk 
analysis will be updated.

Works Authorization Number 20 is proposed in the amount of $299,649.23.

Additionally, Program Management by Dannenbaum Engineering for this work is already included in Work Authorization 
No. 9, therefore, no additional effort for Dannenbaum is required.

Options
Work Authorization No. 20 may be disapproved by the Board of Directors. 

Recommendation
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2015-91 – Approval of Work Authorization Number 20 to the 
Professional Service agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to provide an update to the Investment Grade 
Traffic and Revenue Study for the proposed State Highway 365 Toll Revenue Bond Series 2016 issuance is 
recommended in the amount of $299,649.23.

If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.



CONTRACT AMENDMENT SUMMARY 

Amount $  _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

Work Authorization # ___________ 

Supplemental # __________ to WA #_________ 

Supplemental # ___________ 

BACKGROUND:
Resolution

Contract Amount
Proposed

RECOMMENDATION:

Amendment

Proposed Revised Contract Amount

Proposed Amendment

Contract Amount

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of
Proposed Revised Contract Amount of 

Subtotal from Cont. Page

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Amendments:

✔ Dannenbaum Engineering             

                                    

                                   

2015-91

✔ 20

$ 299,649.23

$ 18,204,750.67

$ 299,649.23

$ 909,960.63

$ 57,750.00

$ 694,355.85

Work Authorization Number 6

Work Authorization Number 1

Work Authorization Number 3

Work Authorization Number 4

Work Authorization Number 5 $ 769,236.96

$ 920,263.67

$ 14,553,534.33

SH 365 Invest Grade T&R Update2015-91

$ 17,905,101.44

As part of the State Highway 365 Project, Dannenbuam Engineering provide an Investment Grade Traffic & 
Revenue (T&R) Study for SH 365, IBTC and SH 68 under Work Authorization 14 and 19. 
 
Work Authorization Number 20 is to provide an update to the Investment Grade T&R Study for SH 365 prior 
to going to the bond market in early 2016. The current Investment Grade T&R Study is 14 months old. 
 
Work Authorization Number 20 is proposed in the amount of $299,649.23.  

$ 299,649.23



Approved Amendments Cont... Resolution No.

Subtotal

Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 4 $ 346,720.31

$ 1,437,465.41

$ 182,044.83

$ 460,000.00

$ 10,340,781.60

$ 285,984.85

$ 49,034.16

$ 180,053.72

$ 89,062.56

$ 80,256.47

$ 215,571.04

$ 110,078.54

2015-51

Supplemental 1-2 to Work Authorization 5

Supplemental 1-7 to Work Authorization 6

Work Authorization 8

Work Authorization 9

Work Authorization 10

Work Authorization 11

Work Authorization 12

Work Authorization 13

Work Authorization 14

Work Authorization 15

Work Authorization 16

Work Authorization 17

Work Authorization 18 $ 355,355.20

Work Authorization 19 $ 21,770.44

$ 399,355.20

$ 14,553,534.33

2015-91



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2015 – 91

APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 20 TO 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM 

ENGINEERING CORPORATION TO PROVIDE AN UPDATE TO THE
INVESTMENT GRADE TRAFFIC AND REVENUE STUDY FOR THE 

PROPOSED STATE HIGHWAY 365 TOLL REVENUE BOND SERIES 2016 
ISSUANCE

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2015, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting.

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County; and

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2011 the Authority awarded a professional service 
agreement for general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum 
Engineering Corporation in the maximum payable amount of $5,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has subsequently approved Work Authorizations Numbers 1,
3, 4, 5 and 6, including Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 4,
Supplemental Numbers 1 & 2 to Work Authorization Number 5, and Supplemental Numbers 1,
2, 3,4, 5 & 6 to Work Authorization Number 6, in the amounts of $909,960.63, $57,750.00,
$694,355.85, $769,236.96, $920,263.67, $346,720.31, $1,437,465.41 and $117,054.83
respectively; and

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2013, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 6 to 
Work Authorization Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering to revise the scope of service with no increase in the Work Authorization Number 6 
amount; and

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization Number 
8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to continue program 
management for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects in the 
amount of $574,581.59 and increased the maximum payable amount to $5,827,389.25; and

WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 1 to 
Work Authorization Number 8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering that deducted work in the amount of $114,851.59 for a revised Work Authorization 
amount of $459,730.00 and closed out Work Authorization Number 8; and



WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 9 for Program and Construction Management of the State Highway 365 and 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects from 2014 to 2018 in the amount of 
$10,340,781.60 and increased the maximum payable amount to $16,053,589.26; and

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 10 to modify and update the right of way strip map for the International Bridge 
Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $285,984.85; and

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 11 to provide an updated low level aerial topographic survey for the International 
Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $49,034.16; and

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 12 to provide the Hidalgo County Transportation Reinvestment Zone Number 2 
property ownership update for 2,215 un-coded property parcels in the amount of 
$180,053.72; and

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 13 to provide an Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis in the 
amount of $89,062.56; and

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 14 to provide an Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study in the amount of 
$397,750.88; and

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 15 to prepare a TIGER grant application in the amount of $80,256.47; and

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 16 to prepare a Hydraulic & Hydrology Study for the State Highway 365 and 
International Bridge Trade Corridor drainage service areas in the amount of $215,571.04;
and

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 17 to prepare Traffic Signal Warrant Projected Traffic Counts for the State 
Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects in the amount of 
$110,078.54; and

WHEREAS, on August 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 
1 to Work Authorization Number 17 for a no cost time extension to prepare Traffic Signal 
Warrant Projected Traffic Counts for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge 
Trade Corridor Projects; and

WHEREAS, on September 24, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 18 for non-destructive utility locations for the International Bridge Trade 
Corridor Project in the amount of $355,355.20; and



WHEREAS, on December 15, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental 
Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 18 for a no-cost time extension for non-
destructive utility locations for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project; and

WHEREAS, on July 28, 2015, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 19 to provide scenario analysis for the State Highway 365 Investment Grade 
Traffic and Revenue Study in the amount of $21,770.44; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve Work 
Authorization Number 20 to provide an update to the Investment Grade Traffic and 
Revenue Study for the proposed State Highway 365 Toll Revenue Bond Series 2016 
issuance in the amount of $299,649.23;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT:

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated.

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Work Authorization Number 20 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation hereto attached as Exhibit A.

Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Work Authorization 
Number 20 as approved.

*****



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of December, 2015, at which 
meeting a quorum was present.

Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer



EXHIBIT A

WORK AUTHORIZTION NUMBER 20
TO

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING 
CORPORATION DATED OCTOBER 27, 2011



 
§§Contract§ 

 
 

Hidalgo County  
Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 
 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
CONSULTANT PROJECT 

 
Engineering Services for any and all 

Services Required for the Development of 
all Projects undertaken by the Authority 

including the Entire Loop Project 
 

WA No. 20 
 

December 15, 2015 

 



Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 
HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No.20 – Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation  

Attachment D (D-1) – Page 1 

ATTACHMENT D 
WORK AUTHORIZATION 

D-1 
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  20 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES  
 
THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of “Article V of that certain 
Professional Services Agreement for Program Management Engineering Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and 
between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (the 
Engineer). 
 
PART I.   The Engineer will perform engineering services generally described and in accordance with the project 
description attached hereto and made a part of this Work Authorization.  The responsibilities of the Authority and the 
Engineer as well as the work schedule are further detailed in Exhibits A, B and C which are attached hereto and made a 
part of the Work Authorization.  
 
PART II.   The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization is  $299,649.23 and the method of payment is 
Lump Sum as set forth in Attachment E of the Agreement.  This amount is based upon fees set forth in Attachment E, 
Fee Schedule, of the Agreement and the Engineer’s Estimated Work Authorization Costs included in Exhibit D, Fee 
Schedule, which is attached and made a part of this Work Authorization. 
 
PART III.   Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall be made in 
accordance with Articles III thru V of the Agreement, and Attachment A, Section 1. 
 
PART IV.   This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance of the parties hereto and 
shall terminate on March 30, 2016, unless extended by a supplemental Work Authorization as provided in Attachment 
A, Section 1.  
 
PART V.   This Work Authorization does not waive the parties' responsibilities and obligations provided under the 
Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted and 
acknowledged below. 
 
       THE ENGINEER                  THE AUTHORITY     
              
     (Signature)              (Signature) 
        Louis H. Jones Jr., P.E.                    Pilar Rodriguez, PE   
 (Printed Name)                        (Printed Name) 
               Principal                   Executive Director   
       (Title)                  (Title) 
______________________________    ______________________________ 
       (Date)                  (Date) 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS 
Exhibit A  Services to be provided by the Authority 
Exhibit B  Services to be provided by the Engineer 
Exhibit D  Fee Schedule/Budget 
Exhibit H-2  Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE AUTHORITY 

Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 
HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No. 20 Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 

Exhibit A – Page 1 

 
 
The Authority shall furnish the following items to the Engineer: 

1. The Authority shall provide the name(s) of the Authority’s authorized representative(s) for this 
Agreement. 

2. The Authority shall provide prompt review of all submittals; process monthly invoices and review 
monthly progress reports within forty-five (45) days of receiving such documents. 

3. The Authority; where available; will provide copies of official correspondence to date. 
4. The Authority shall authorize the Engineer to access and obtain all deliverables from Authority 

consultants on all projects undertaken by Authority to date.  Including any applicable meeting minutes, 
correspondence and agency comments. 

5. The Authority shall provide a copy of all Authority Agreements with other agencies.  (i.e., TxDOT, City 
of Pharr, Hidalgo County, etc.). 

6. To the extent possible, the Authority shall provide copies of correspondence and/or reports to TxDOT 
reporting on the Authority’s DBE Program as outlined in the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
Between the Authority and TxDOT executed on March 13, 2008.  Also, the Authority shall provide the 
name of the designated DBE liaison officer with TxDOT; if not the Engineer, which is required under 
the above MOU. 
 

 
The following assumptions have been made regarding the development of Exhibit “D”- Fee Schedule.  If 
any of these assumptions prove to be invalid; then the Engineer reserves the right to request a change in 
scope. 
 
Assumptions for Work Authorization No. 20 

1. The Authority will provide all known existing studies affecting this project. 
 

2. To its best efforts, the Authority will provide all available and applicable existing detailed construction 
cost estimates for all existing schematics. 
 

3. Include all assumptions identified in task descriptions within Exhibit “D” Fee Schedule for this Work 
Authorization. 

 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT B  
Scope of Services to be Provided by the Engineer  

For Work Authorization No. 20 
 

 
Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No.20 – Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation  
Exhibit B – Page 1 

 

Scope of Work 
Project Management 
Quality Assurance and Quality Control will be performed for the results and deliverables of every task. The monthly 
progress of the project will be documented in a monthly report, and the project’s cumulative progress will be 
summarized in each report. 

Review of Existing Information 
C&M will review all the information obtained through TxDOT, CAPUFE, County and City agencies, and other local and 
global sources regarding the project, including traffic reports, recent and collected traffic counts, socioeconomic data 
(including population, employment, and income), long range transportation plans, and macroeconomic variables. C&M 
will also analyze and incorporate the following information: 

 New Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) data for 2014 
 New Census population updates for 2014 
 Updated TxDOT permanent count station data and AADT count locations 
 Border traffic trends (to determine how relatively new bridges like the Donna Bridge and the Anzalduas Bridge 

are performing) 
 New truck traffic trends 
 The impact of the heavy weight permits on SH 365 using existing data 
 New surveys related to traffic in and around Hidalgo County 

Field Observations/Data Collection 
C&M proposes the following fieldwork tasks: 

 A reduced counting program on the key locations inside Hidalgo County, which have been the subject of 
attention in the past. 

 An internal truck Origin and Destination (OD) Survey; based on the fast-paced changes in the spatial 
configuration of trip ends in the area, resulting from recent economic expansion and the construction of new 
developments, C&M proposes to conduct a license plate or transponder recognition-based survey on the major 
truck locations inside and exiting/entering the model area. 

 A review and validation of the Highway Network inventory; C&M will update the inventory of existing highway 
network characteristics, paying particular attention to new developments around the study area, confirming the 
selected "area of influence," and ascertaining “decision making points,” where competition and the general 
users’ trade-offs occurs. This would also involve an update of the "network supply" for potential user markets, 
including planned improvements to highways within the project area of influence and the region. 

 A truck Stated Preference (SP) survey that would target truck companies traveling the border by using the 
database from the heavy weight permits. 

 A passenger car SP survey for Hidalgo County; this survey is recommended because the latest model coefficients 
are based on a study that is four years old. 



EXHIBIT B  
Scope of Services to be Provided by the Engineer  

For Work Authorization No. 20 
 

 
Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No.20 – Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation  
Exhibit B – Page 2 

 

 A border OD survey for passengers; since this was previously done four years ago, updated results can 
significantly improve model performanceC&M will review and supervise all field work efforts and deliverables 
performed by sub-consultants, including the traffic count program and OD survey. 

Socioeconomic Analysis 
C&M will review and validate population and employment forecasts for the specified project study area. A detailed 
socioeconomic review will be conducted for the project’s area of influence to validate the independent socioeconomic 
forecast trends. 

Travel Demand Modeling 
C&M will recalibrate and validate the latest version of the Hidalgo County C&M Travel Demand Model, which 
encompasses Hidalgo and Cameron Counties. The main focus will be on the project study area. The following modeling 
tasks will be carried out:  

 Evaluate Highway Network Characteristics and Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZs): The evaluation includes an 
assessment of the link and nodes attributes, and the consistency and functionality of the network components. 
The model’s TAZs will be modified based on physical network characteristics and socioeconomic information, if 
necessary. The network will be validated and highway improvements will be updated based on the 
Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) and the Master Transportation Plan (MTP) 

 Validate network travel times: The model outputs will be validated with field travel time measurements (i.e., 
Google) and necessary adjustments will be made to calibrate the model for the base year. Specifically, a clear 
understanding of travel times and time-savings (or trade-offs) is to emerge in connection with the project and its 
area of influence, with a more accurate depiction of access points from developments to the highway network 
system.  

 Model calibration: The model representing existing conditions will be compared to existing counts and OD 
results within the areas of influence. Using speed values measured under speed and delay surveys and real-time 
monitoring of online travel times, impedances will be adjusted to reproduce control results in accordance with 
accepted calibration tolerances. The model will be validated to reflect capacity restraints resulting from traffic 
counts and the number of lanes at key intersections within the study area.  

 Update the toll diversion model: A toll diversion model will be developed based on travel-times on routes using 
the toll facility versus routes not using the toll facility, as well as the Value of Time (VOT) for different purposes 
and vehicle classifications in the project area. The toll diversion model’s objective is to estimate the traffic on 
the toll facility, taking into account the competing toll-free roadways. The toll diversion model will use the 
diversion curves constructed in accordance with the stated preference data collected in previous studies. The 
diversion methodology will be applied to the opening year of SH 365 (2018) and two future year models: 2028 
and 2035. 

 Develop weekend model: Based on the collected data, C&M will create a weekend model—in addition to the 
weekday model—to more accurately estimate the impact of tourist traffic on the project. C&M recognizes that 
not only border traffic but also people from the surrounding counties are traveling on the weekends to the 
attractions of Hidalgo and Cameron Counties. 



EXHIBIT B  
Scope of Services to be Provided by the Engineer  

For Work Authorization No. 20 
 

 
Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No.20 – Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation  
Exhibit B – Page 3 

 

Traffic and Revenue Projections 
The travel demand and toll diversion models will be used to develop traffic and revenue projections for the opening and 
future model years. Based on the projections, C&M will report annual figures throughout the 40-year forecast period. 
The following tasks outline this process in more detail: 

 Develop new opening and future year trip tables by using the future year trip tables produced by the travel 
demand model, incorporating the new evaluated socioeconomic forecast. 

 Estimate the ramp-up period for current years: Current years will be adjusted to account for project ramp-up 
based on toll operation characteristics such as electronic-toll-collection (ETC) market penetration and other 
factors typical of start-up or recently opened infrastructure, as well as characteristics specific to the project area. 

 Develop the future year forecast based on major network improvements or changes of trip patterns: 
Intermediate (2028) and horizon year (2035) models will be developed using the travel demand model. 

 Estimate the 40-year forecast: For years beyond the last model year, traffic and revenue figures will be 
estimated based on the resulting forecast trend and key socioeconomic variables. Traffic and revenue figures for 
intermediate years between the model years will be interpolated. C&M will employ a post-processing model to 
control all variables for the traffic and revenue forecast.  

Sensitivity Analysis 
C&M will use the calibrated model to conduct a sensitivity analysis on key factors affecting the traffic and revenue of the 
project. In addition to the most likely (i.e., Base case) scenario, two additional scenarios will be evaluated by C&M based 
on variations of the key socioeconomic parameters. These two scenarios will represent Low and High cases 
corresponding to a slower and faster socioeconomic growth when compared to that of the Base case. The sensitivity 
scenarios include the following model input parameters: 

 Toll 
 Value of Time 
 Population 
 Employment 
 Electronic Toll Collection (ETC) Penetration 
 Revenue Days 
 Truck Percentage 
 Border Traffic 

Risk Analysis 
Based on the used model inputs, C&M will validate the risk of the forecast through risk analysis. C&M will define the risk 
for all input variables to validate the risk for the overall forecast. 

Documentation 
C&M will report the methodologies, inputs, analyses, and results of its study in accordance to the respective tasks. All 
the major findings of the study, including the final traffic and revenue figures, will be forwarded to Dannenbaum 
Engineering and presented upon request. 



EXHIBIT B  
Scope of Services to be Provided by the Engineer  

For Work Authorization No. 20 
 

 
Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No.20 – Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation  
Exhibit B – Page 4 

 

Financial Community Support 
C&M will provide the traffic and revenue forecasts of up to 5 scenarios to financial communities, including peer 
reviewers and Rating agencies. For this phase of the project, C&M assumes two teleconference meetings and one 
physical meeting within a one-month period after submitting the final report. Anything more than that will be charged 
as Time and Material costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  







DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION EXHIBIT 'D' (Work Authorization No. 20)

Program Management Services for the HCRMA Roadway System Fee Schedule/Budget for
Work Authorization No. 20 Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA)
Subconsultant: C&M Associates Program Management Consultant
Schedule Duration:  11/17/15 - 3/30/16 Work Authorization No. 20

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES
DESCRIPTION

Chief Engineer/  
Principal 

Project Manager Senior Engineer Project Engineer Junior Engineer
Total

Labor Hrs.
Remarks  Task

Cost 

Task 1. Project Management 8 16 24 6,346.15$                  

Task 2. Updting the current model 0  $                            -   

    Task 2.1 Review of Existing Information 8 8 40 40 96  $                12,461.54 

    Task 2.2 Field Observations/Data Collection 16 8 32 32 88  $                12,750.00 

    Task 2.3 Socioeconomic Analysis 24 16 40 40 120  $                18,057.69 

    Task 2.4 Travel Demand Modeling 32 16 64 64 176  $                25,500.00 

Task 3. Adopting the new Valley model 0  $                            -   

    Task 3.1 Network Review 8 8 16 16 48  $                 7,096.15 

    Task 3.2 Socioeconomic and Border crossing review 16 8 32 32 88  $                12,750.00 

    Task 3.3 Traffic assigmnet resulsts consitency 16 8 32 32 88  $                12,750.00 

Task 4. Traffic and Revenue Projection 8 40 24 80 80  $                34,788.46 

Task 5. Sensitivity Analysis 4 24 16 40 40  $                19,153.85 

Task 6. Risk Analysis 4 24 16 40 40  $                19,153.85 

Task 7. Documentation 24 40 24 48 48  $                32,019.23 

Task 8. Peer Review and financial Support 16 24 16 40 40  $                22,442.31 

64 288 168 504 504 0 0 0 728 0 235,269.23$              

HOURS TOTAL 64 288 168 504 504 0 0 0 728

LABOR RATE PER HOUR 274.04$                            259.62$                            180.29$                            129.81$                            93.75$                              $0.00 -$                                  -$                              

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS 17,538.46$                                  74,769.23$                                  30,288.46$                                  65,423.08$                                  47,250.00$                                  -$                                             -$                                             -$                                        235,269.23$                       

PERCENT LABOR UTILIZATION FOR TOTAL PROJECT (BASED ON FEE) 7.45% 31.78% 12.87% 27.81% 20.08% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% CHECK

PERCENT LABOR UTILIZATION FOR TOTAL PROJECT (BASED ON MANHOURS) 8.79% 39.56% 23.08% 69.23% 69.23% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 235,269.23$              

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST 235,269.23$              

DIRECT EXPENSES Rate Unit Amount Total

Parking 14.00$                              Each 20 280.00$                            280.00$                     

Airfare 500.00$                            Each 10 5,000.00$                         5,000.00$                  

Meals 30.00$                              Each 40 1,200.00$                         1,200.00$                  

Lodging 100.00$                            Each 20 2,000.00$                         2,000.00$                  

Car Rental 90.00$                              Each 10 900.00$                            900.00$                     

Data Collection 55,000.000$                     1 55,000.00$                       55,000.00$                

Blue Tooth and OD Survey 30,000.00$                       0 -$                                  -$                           

SP Survey on private cars on the border 20,000.00$                       0 -$                                  -$                           

Company truck survey 5,000.00$                         0 -$                                  -$                           

-$                                  -$                                  -$                           

-$                                  -$                                  -$                           

-$                                  -$                                  -$                           

-$                                  -$                                  -$                           

-$                                  -$                                  -$                           

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES 64,380.00$                                  64,380.00$                

GRAND TOTAL 299,649.23$                       

ASSUMPTIONS

NONE

G:\1540\4652-20 HCRMA PMC (GEC Report)\05 Exhibit D (WA20) - Fee Schedule 2015-11-10



Program Management Consulting Services (PMC Project) 
HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No. 20– Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation  

Exhibit H-2-Page 1  
 

EXHIBIT H-2 
Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority (Authority).  NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract that does not include 
work authorizations.  Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work authorization.  Attachment H-2 is also 
required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization.  If DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, the form must be 
completed and signed.  If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, indicate with “N/A” on this line: __________ and attach 
with the work authorization or supplemental work authorization.   

Contract #:              Assigned Goal: 12%   Prime Provider   Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 

Work Authorization (WA)#:       20       WA Amount:             $299,649.23      Date:          
Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #: _____ to WA #:                         SWA Amount:                            
Revised WA Amount:            

Description of Work 
(List by category of work or task description.  Attach additional pages, if 
necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 
(For each category of work or task 
description shown.) 

FC $299,649.23 
  

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $299,649.23 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and 
Non-DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name:  Dannenbaum Engineering 
Corporation 
Address:  1109 Nolana, Suite 208, McAllen, Texas 
78504 
PH: (956) 682-3677; FX: (956) 686-1822 
Email: louis.jones@dannenbaum.com  

 
Name:  Louis H. Jones Jr., P.E.        
(Please Print) 
Title:  Principal                              
 
       
Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider  
Subprovider Name:  C&M Associates, Inc. 
VID Number:  
Address:  15770 North Dallas Parkway Dallas, Texas 
75248 
PH: (214) 245-5300 ; FX: (214) 889-5049  
Email:  sbohluli@candc-associates.com  
 
 

 
Name:            Carlos Contreras, P.E.                   .  
(Please Print) 
Title:               President                          
 
       
Signature                             Date 

Second Tier Sub Provider N/A 
Subprovider Name: N/A 
VID Number: N/A 
Address: N/A 
Phone #& Fax #: N/A 
Email: N/A 

 
Name:       
(Please Print) 
Title:       
 
       
Signature                             Date 

VID Number is the Vendor Identification Number issued by the Comptroller.  If a firm does not have a VID 
Number, please enter the owner’s Social Security or their Federal Employee Identification Number (if 
incorporated). 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3F 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS X AGENDA ITEM        3F
PLANNING COMMITTEE  DATE SUBMITTED      12/01/15                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 12/15/15
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2015-92 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 8 TO 
THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING TO 
INCREASE THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 20.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments: X Yes     No

Approval of Supplemental Number 8 to Professional Service Agreement with
Dannenbaum Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization
Number 20 in the amount of $299,649.23 for a revised maximum payable amount of
$18,204,750.67.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy         

4. Budgeted:     X Yes     No     N/A Funding Source:  VRF Bond

Proposed Supplemental No. 8:
Increasing the maximum payable amount by: $299,649.23

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2015-92 - Approval of Supplemental 
Number 8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to
increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 20 in the amount
of $299,649.23 for a revised maximum payable amount of $18,204,750.67.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation: X Approved     Disapproved     None

6. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:  Approved     Disapproved       X None

7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: Approved     Disapproved     X None

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation: Approved     Disapproved     X None

9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation: X Approved     Disapproved     None

10. Executive Director’s Recommendation: X Approved     Disapproved     None



CONTRACT AMENDMENT SUMMARY 

Amount $  _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

Work Authorization # ___________ 

Supplemental # __________ to WA #_________ 

Supplemental # ___________ 

BACKGROUND:
Resolution

Contract Amount
Proposed

RECOMMENDATION:

Amendment

Proposed Revised Contract Amount

Proposed Amendment

Contract Amount

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of
Proposed Revised Contract Amount of 

Subtotal from Cont. Page

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Amendments:

✔ Dannenbaum Engineering             

                                    

                                   

2015-92

✔ 8

$ 299,649.23

$ 18,204,750.67

$ 299,649.23

$ 5,000,000.00

$ 838,432.53

$ 10,226,200.01

Supplemental Number 4

Original Contract Amount

Supplemental Number 1

Supplemental Number 2

Supplemental Number 3 $ 1,072,703.68

$ 280,561.04

$ 487,204.18

SH 365 Invest Grade T&R Scenario Update2015-92

$ 17,905,101.44

Supplemental Number 8 increases the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 20 by 
$299,649.23 for a revised maximum payable amount of $18,204,750.67.  

$ 299,649.23



Approved Amendments Cont... Resolution No.

Subtotal

Supplemental Number 5 $ 110,078.54

$ 355,355.20

$ 21,770.44

Supplemental Number 6

Supplemental Number 7

$ 487,204.18

2015-92



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2015 – 92

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 8 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING TO 

INCREASE THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR WORK 
AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 20

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2015, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting.

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County; and

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2011 the Authority awarded a professional service 
agreement for general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum 
Engineering Corporation in the maximum payable amount of $5,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has subsequently approved Work Authorizations Numbers 1,
3, 4, 5 and 6, including Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 4,
Supplemental Numbers 1 & 2 to Work Authorization Number 5, Supplemental Numbers 1, 2,
3,4, 5 & 6 to Work Authorization Number 6 and Work Authorization Number 8 in the amounts 
of $909,960.63, $57,750.00, $694,355.85, $769,236.96, $920,263.67, $346,720.31,
$1,437,465.41, 117,054.83 and $574,581.59 respectively; and

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2013, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 6 to 
Work Authorization Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering to revise the scope of service with no increase in the Work Authorization Number 6 
amount; and

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to increase the maximum 
payable amount to correspond with the approved Work Authorizations and Supplementals to 
Work Authorizations in the revised maximum payable amount of $5,838,432.53; and

WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 1 to 
Work Authorization Number 8 and Work Authorization Number 9 in the amounts of 
($114,581.59) and $10,340,781.60 respectively for Program and Construction Management of 
the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects from 2014 to 2018: and



WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 2 
increasing the maximum payable amount of the Professional Service Agreement with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to correspond with Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization 
Number 8 and Work Authorization Number 9 for a revised maximum payable amount of 
$16,064,632.54; and

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 3 
increasing the maximum payable amount of the Professional Service Agreement with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to correspond with Work Authorization Numbers 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 
and 15 in the amount of $1,072,703.68 for a revised maximum payable amount of 
$17,137,336.22; and 

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 4 
increasing the maximum payable amount of the Professional Service Agreement with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to correspond with approval of Supplemental 7 to Work Authorization 
Number 6 and Work Authorization Number 16 in the amount of $280,561.04 for a revised 
maximum payable amount of $17,417,897.26; and

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 5 
increased the maximum payable amount of the Professional Service Agreement with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to correspond with approval of Work Authorization Number 17 in the 
amount of $110,078.54 for a revised maximum payable amount of $17,527,975.80; and

WHEREAS, on September 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 6 
increasing the maximum payable amount of the Professional Service Agreement with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to correspond with approval of Work Authorization Number 18 in the 
amount of $355,355.20 for a revised maximum payable amount of $17,883,331.00; and

WHEREAS, on July 28, 2015, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 7 to 
increase the maximum payable amount of the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering to correspond with approval of Work Authorization Number 19 in the amount of 
$21,770.44 for a revised maximum payable amount of $17,905,101.44; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve Supplemental 
Number 8 to increase the maximum payable amount of the Professional Service Agreement with 
Dannenbaum to correspond with approval of Work Authorization Number 20 in the amount of
$299,649.23 for a revised maximum payable amount of $18,204,750.67;



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT:

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated.

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 8 to the Professional Service 
Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation for an increase to the maximum payable
amount of $299,649.23 for a revised maximum payable amount of $18,204,750.67, hereto 
attached as Exhibit A.

Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Supplemental Number 8
to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering as approved.

*****



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 28th day of July, 2015, at which meeting 
a quorum was present.

Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer



EXHIBIT A

SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 8
TO 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING 
CORPORATION DATED OCTOBER 27, 2011

INCREASING THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT



 
§§Contract§ 

 
 

Hidalgo County  
Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 
 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
CONSULTANT PROJECT 

 
Engineering Services for any and all 

Services Required for the Development of 
all Projects undertaken by the Authority 

including the Entire Loop Project 
 

SA 8 to Main Contract 
 

December 15, 2015 

 



Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 
HCRMA Engineering Agreement – Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation  

Supplemental Agreement No. 8 to Professional Services Agreement  
For Program Management Engineering Services Dated 10/27/2011 

 SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. __8__ 
TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR PROGRAM MANAGEMENT ENGINEERING SERVICES 
Dated 10/27/2011 

 
THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 8 TO MAIN CONTRACT is made pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of “Article II Agreement Period and III Compensation and Attachment A General Provisions Section 6 
Supplemental Agreements of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Program Management Engineering 
Services Dated 10/27/2011” hereinafter identified as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (the Engineer). 
  
The following terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows: 
 
 
Article III Compensation  
Article III Compensation shall be amended to increase the amount payable under this contract from 
$17,905,101.44 to $18,204,750.67 for a total increase of $299,649.23 due to additional scope and effort outlined 
in Work Authorization No. 20. 
 
This Supplemental Agreement No. 8 to the Main Contract shall become effective on the date of final execution 
of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby amended are to remain in full 
force and effect.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Agreement is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby 
accepted and acknowledged below. 
 
 
 
      THE ENGINEER          THE AUTHORITY  
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
 (Signature)      (Signature) 
______________________________  ___Pilar Rodriguez, PE__________ 
 (Printed Name)     (Printed Name) 
______________________________  _____Executive Director________ 
 (Title)       (Title) 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
 (Date)       (Date) 
 
 


	Notice and Agenda
	Workshop Item 1 - Review of Proposed HCRMA Fiscal Year 2016 Operating and Capital Budget
	Workshop Item 2 - Discussion Regarding Bid Alternates for the SH 365 Segments 1 & 2 Project.
	Workshop Item 3 - Discussion Regarding Audit of DBE Requirement for Engineering and Surveying Consultants Working on the SH 365 Project
	Workshop Item 4 - Discussion Regarding Proposed Supplemental No. 2 to WA No. 9 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering
	Item 1A - Report on Program Manager Activity for SH 365 and IBTC
	Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting held November 20, 2015
	Item 2B - Approval of Project and General Expense Report From November 7, 2015 through December 4, 2015
	Item 2C - Approval of the Financial Report for the Month of November 2015
	Item 2D - Resolution 2015-81 - Approval of Supplemental No. 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with L&G Engineering for a No-Cost time extension for SH 365 Project IBWC Bridge Layouts
	Item 2E - Resolution 2015-82 - Approval of Supplemental No. 2 to WA No. 3 to the Professional Service Agreement with L&G Engineering for a No-Cost Time extension to prepare final plans
	Item 2F - Resolution 2015-83 - Approval of Supplemental No. 2 to WA No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with S&B Infrastructure for a No-Cost Time Extension to perform SH365 Segment 1
	Item 2G - Resolution 2015-84 - Approval of Supplemental No. 3 to WA 2 to the Professional Service Agrement with S&B Infrastructure for a No-Cost Time Extention 
	Item 2H - Resolution 2015-85 - Approval of Supplemental No. 5 to WA No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Raba Kistner for a No-Cost Time Extension to Provide Payment
	Item 2I - Resolution 2015-86 - Approval of Supplemental No. 2 to WA No. 3 to the Professional Service Agreement with R. Gutierrez Engineering for a No-Cost Time Extension for ETT Parcels
	Item 3A - Resolution 2015-87 - Adoption of HCRMA Fiscal Year 2016 Operating and Capital Budget
	Item 3B - Resolution 2015-88 - Approval of bid Alternates for the SH 365 Segment 1 & 2 Project
	Item 3C - Resolution 2015-89 - Approval of Award of Contract to Foremost Paving for Constuction of the US 281/Military Hwy Overpass/BSIF Connector
	Item 3D - Resolution 2015-90 - Approval of Professional Service Agreemetns with Raba Kistner, L&G Laboratory, and Terracon to provide Construction & Materials Services for SH 365 and IBTC Projects.
	Item 3E - Resolution 2015-91 - Approval of WA No. 20 to Professional Services Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to Provide and Update to the Investment Grade Traffice and Revenue Study for the Proposed SH365 Toll Revenue Bond Series 2016 Issuance
	Item 3F - Resolution 2015-92 - Approval of Supplemental No 8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to Increase the Maximum Payable Amount for WA No. 20



